
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING  
G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 

Monday, September 30, 2024 
5:00 P.M. 

   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements 
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held September 16, 2024 
• Executive Session held September 16, 2024 
• Special Called Meeting held September 19, 2024 

 
8. Employee Recognition 

 

BUSINESS 
 

9. ZSP C2400135: Christopher Sipos has petitioned to amend the existing site plan; located at 39 
Creekstone Lane (TMP 083 020).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on Monday, July 8, 
2024, and City Council Monday, July 15, 2024 – Tabled to September 16, 2024.  City Council for a 
decision on Monday, September 30, 2024.  
 

10. Resolution No. R2024-03: Resolution Enacting A Moratorium For A Period Of Six Months On All 
Residential Zoning And Re-Zoning Applications While The City Considers Changes To Its Zoning 
Ordinance. Public Hearing and First Reading: September 16, 2024; Second Reading and 
Consideration to Adopt: September 30, 2024. 

 

11. Consideration of Transferring Grandaddy Mimms 2023 Alcohol License Fees to 2024 Fees 
12. Ratification of Declaration of Emergency for Hurricane Helene 

 
 

  MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED: Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or Personnel     

     RESERVED FOR POTENTIAL ACTION ON EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS, IF NEEDED 
 

     ADJOURNMENT 
 
  

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, October 21, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk 
at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 09/30/2024 
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held September 16, 2024 
• Executive Session held September 16, 2024 
• Special Called Meeting held September 19, 2024 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 09/30/2024 
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 
• SPECIAL CALLED MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 19, 2024 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 16, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 5 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Walden called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember William Illg, Councilmember Sandy Sawyer, 
Councilmember Mark French, Councilmember Caleb Phillips, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Utility 
Director Jacob Barr, Finance Director Robin Gazaway, Downtown Development Director Amanda 
Edmondson and Planning Director Ron Haynie.     

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE: Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Sawyer.   

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  The Mayor reminded the public of a Special Called meeting to be held on 
September 30, 2024 at 5:00 pm and the October 7, 2024 Regular Meeting has been cancelled.  

 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to amend the agenda to add item #18 Certificates of Deposit 
for the Cemetery Funds made by S. Sawyer; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended made by M. French; second by C. Phillips. Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 

 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None     

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a and b) made 
by C. Phillips; second by S. Sawyer. Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 19, 2024 

b. Approve 2025 Solid Waste Collection Service Agreement with Red Oak Sanitation 
 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  City Manager Bolz introduced the Work Based Learning Intern from 
the High School, Mahayala DeLong-Jones.  The Mayor and Council recognized Trampas Hansard as 
the August 2024 Employee of the Month and Jacob Barr received a thirteen-year service award.     

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

9. ZSP C2400135: Christopher Sipos has petitioned to amend the existing site plan; located at 39 
Creekstone Lane (TMP 083 020).  Public Hearing Dates:  Planning Commission on Monday, July 8, 
2024, and City Council Monday, July 15, 2024 – Tabled to September 16, 2024.  City Council for a 
decision on Monday, September 30, 2024.  
 

Planning Director Haynie read the request and reported the Planning Commission approved the 
request with conditions as recommended by the Planning Department.   
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.  Mayor Walden conducted the public hearing. 
 

The following person(s) spoke in favor of the request: 
• Terrence Sicilia, 215 Red Hawk Drive, Dawsonville – He stated the commercial parcel 

was zoned for Commercial Highway Business as per the minutes of the June 7, 2004 
City Council meeting which includes the uses contained within the Neighborhood 
Business designation and explained the parcel has already been approved for a 
60,000 square foot commercial building and Mr. Cipos is requesting a reduction to 
20,000 square feet. He has suggested a deed restriction or land covenants for the 
parcel to ensure that any restricted use cannot be developed in the future. He 
explained they only requested a site specific plan amendment, not a zoning change; 
they’ve operated in good faith and within the zoning guidelines previously approved 
for the property.  

 

The following person(s) spoke in opposition to the request: 
• Lorhetta Healy, 324 Flowing Trail, Dawsonville – Ms. Healy read a letter which included 

other documents outlining her opposition to the request. They included a public 
passive park contained within the original stipulations which has not been developed, 
access to the commercial parcel, the permitted uses contained within the zoning and 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 16, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 2 of 5 
 

the request to restrict certain uses.  She also read the City Council minutes from June 
7, 2004 citing the original approval of the annexation and rezone. 

 

The ten minute allowance for the opposing side of the public hearing expired. Motion by M. French to 
extend the public hearing for both sides by ten minutes; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 
 

• Ms. Healy continued in her opposition and referenced Moon Drive as an option to be 
explored for access and expressed a concern about no cutouts around the commercial 
property in any maps or plats.   

• Megan Morris, 75 Flowing Trail, Dawsonville – She expressed that the Council should 
enforce the original conditions of 2004 because “the property is no longer under unified 
ownership”.  She further questioned whether the PUD zoning should still apply or if 
new conditions are necessary and stated the “development has strayed from it’s 
original purpose” and called for a thorough and transparent review of the project. She 
quoted the City’s current PUD guidelines and communicated how it differed from the 
current development.  Lastly, she insisted on doing what is right for the best interest of 
the community and safety and well-being of the children and stated the absurdity of 
the proposal.  

• Stephen Schultz, 46 Creekstone Lane, Dawsonville – He stated his concerns about 
repeated inconsistencies heard from the builder and realtor questioning transparency 
and alleged misrepresentations.  He questioned how the plans could move forward 
with the inconsistencies and careless planning of the developers and a disregard for 
the community. 

• Shelby Argento, 213 Timber Ridge, Dawsonville – She stated her concerns regarding 
traffic and safety for the residents and quoted a current PUD guideline which she said 
states that commercial traffic should not flow through residential areas. 

 

The additional ten minute allowance for the opposing side of the public hearing expired. Motion by W. 
Illg to extend the public hearing for both sides by five minutes; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 
 

• Ms. Argento continued explaining the type of commercial properties that should and 
should not be allowed.  Lastly, she disagreed with the suggestion of moving the bus 
stop citing it is still a disregard for child safety when mixing commercial traffic with a 
residential area and requested a traffic study be performed to evaluate these issues.  

• John May, 371 Flowing Trail, Dawsonville – He stated the community within 
Creekstone contributes more than $800,000 in City and County taxes and they total 
three to four hundred voters in the County.  He stated Planning & Zoning made a 
mistake in 2004 by not anticipating the type of neighborhood Creekstone would 
become.  He further stated commercial business’ at the entry of a residential 
subdivision is unheard of and said he could not find examples of such in Dawson, 
Forsyth and Fulton County and feels it would bring down property values. Mr. May 
implored the Council to deny the request.  

 

Mayor Walden invited the applicant in favor of the request to speak publicly.   
 

• Terrence Sicilia responded by showing a copy of the survey from 2019 which has been 
reviewed and approved by the City and recorded at the Courthouse which shows the 
curb cuts; he showed a plan obtained from the County which included the approved 
commercial outparcel for a 60,000 square foot building and stated Mr. Cipos is 
requesting only 20,000 square feet; he stated they’ve already agreed to “knock things 
out” from the permitted uses within the zoning that would not be appropriate for the 
subdivision; he mentioned the market crash which impacted the community and him 
not being the original developer and having no control over the stipulation regarding 
the park; he said GDOT turned down a deceleration lane and another exit only feet 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 16, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 3 of 5 
 

from the existing entrance/exit of Creekstone; he said he also cannot control the 
inconsistencies from the builders, he can only show what Mr. Cipos’ intention is for the 
property; he reported on a conversation with transportation referencing the change of 
the school bus stop and he stated there will be no outside storage allowed or any 
unregistered or inoperable vehicles outside either.   

 

Motion to close the public hearing made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.   
 

Councilmember Phillips asked for confirmation from Attorney Tallant that when the motion was made 
in 2004 concerning the park, that no acreage was specified in the stipulation; Attorney Tallant stated 
that was correct.  The motion was made for a passive park which did not include a number of acres 
that can be enforced.  It was further stated it is yet to be determined who would be responsible for the 
park.  Councilmember Phillips asked if the zoning can be changed; Attorney Tallant stated the zoning 
is not up for a decision because an application for rezoning does not exist.  He further stated if the 
current request is denied, the property is still zoned as commercial.  However, according to the City’s 
ordinance, the Council could limit the types of permitted uses when a site plan approval is under 
consideration. Councilmember Phillips confirmed with Attorney Tallant that the Council could limit the 
permitted uses within the zoning but if the request is denied, a 60,000 square foot commercial building 
for any of the permitted uses in Highway Business could be developed;  Attorney Tallant stated that 
is correct.   
 

Councilmember Illg asked Mr. Silicia if he was aware of any instances where commercial access goes 
through a residential neighborhood; Mr. Silicia responded no traffic is going through the residential 
area but only entering at the same point and he cited Riley Place on Dawson Forest Road as having 
two commercial properties at the front of the residential neighborhood. Councilmember Illg asked 
about vehicle parking for the business such as trailers and work vehicles, whether they will be allowed; 
Mr. Silicia responded at present only a concept plan exists showing two parking spaces in front of the 
office and stated the actual plan would still need to be worked out with Planning but there is plenty of 
paved area for parking despite not being represented on the concept plan.  He stated the intention is 
to be a neat and clean office space meant for startups.  Councilmember Illg stated he understands 
this parcel will be commercial; however, he is concerned with the issues regarding access.  Mr. Silicia 
stated he is aware of another access available that goes to Maple Street which could be opened.  
 

Councilmember Sawyer asked if there is a requirement for two entrances and exits; Planning Director 
Haynie stated it would be determined once the actual design is presented and expects it to be much 
different than the concept plan.  She further inquired if there was consideration of reducing the square 
footage from 20,000 square feet;  Mr. Sicilia stated it doesn’t appear they could do it at this time.  
 

10. RESOLUTION NO. R2024-03: Resolution Enacting A Moratorium For A Period Of Six Months On All 
Commercial And Residential Zoning And Re-Zoning Applications While The City Considers Changes 
To Its Zoning Ordinance. Public Hearing and First Reading: September 16, 2024; Second Reading 
and Consideration to Adopt: September 30, 2024. 
 

City Attorney Tallant read the first reading of the resolution and stated the draft has been updated to 
not include commercial.   
 

Motion to open the public hearing made by C. Phillips; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  Mayor Walden conducted the public hearing.  No one spoke in favor of or 
opposition to the resolution.  Motion to close the public hearing made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  
Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

 

BUSINESS 
 

11. SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT FOR GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME, OCTOBER 25 – 
27, 2024: Cindy Elliott requested the permit and stated they would like to add an additional bar in the 
Gordon Pirkle Room to utilize the new pergola area outside the room and stated the access points at 
the back of the building are all fire zones and would not take anything away from Kare for Kids. She 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 16, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 4 of 5 
 

further stated they’d likely need to have the entrance at the pergola and the exit off the double doors 
near the kitchen. Ms. Elliott confirmed the third bar will be located inside and will have all the 
necessary security that is required.  Motion to approve the alcohol permit made by M. French; second 
by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 

12. CONSIDERATION OF LAND AND WATER CONSERVATION FUND GRANT APPLICATION:  
Motion to approve applying for the Georgia Department of Natural Resources Land & Water 
Conservation Fund Grant and to approve a partnership with Georgia Mountain Regional Commission 
to apply for the grant on behalf of the City in the amount of $1,500.00 to be paid out of the FY 2025 
General Fund budget made by W. Illg; second by S. Sawyer.  Councilmember French asked about 
the grant match; Downtown Director Edmondson stated it is a 50% match for the project but the 
amount is undetermined at this time because it’s not a shovel ready project but reassured 
Councilmember French the Council would ultimately approve the award.  Vote carried unanimously 
in favor.   

 

13. CONSIDERATION OF FINAL PLAT FOR THE VILLAGE AT MAPLE STREET:  Councilmember 
Phillips stated he is recusing himself.   

 

Motion to deny the request made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  Councilmember Illg asked what 
happens on their end if the plat is denied; Planning Director Haynie stated the tender is not accepted.  
They are making a tender according to the ordinance that all the systems would be dedicated to the 
City within twelve to eighteen months, during that time it allows for the City to evaluate the 
performance of the systems and any failures could be corrected with the performance and 
maintenance bonds.  He clarified it is the acceptance of the tender at this time, not of the systems.  
Attorney Tallant stated if the Council is denying the request, they will need to provide details on what 
the developer will need to fix.  Councilmember French stated he is concerned about one point of 
egress to the property regarding proper fire suppression, on street parking and the density; 
Councilmember Illg concurred.  Attorney Tallant asked if it complies with the development regulations; 
Planning Director Haynie stated it does with one point of concern being the storm water/storm drain 
conveyance system and its performance.  Councilmember Illg asked if a fire truck could turn around 
in the cul de sac and Haynie replied they have approval from the Fire Marshal.  Vote carried three in 
favor to deny (French, Illg, Sawyer) with one recused (Phillips).   

 

WORK SESSION  
 

14. CITY PARKING ORDINANCE OPTIONS:  Various parking issues were discussed along with possible 
resolutions including enforcement if it is creating a safety or hazardous issue. Council requested staff 
to verify whether or not the Sheriff’s Office would be enforcing the City’s ordinance for parking 
violations. 
 

Motion to table the item to the October 21, 2024 City Council meeting made by W. Illg; second by M. 
French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

15. PROPOSED FINE SCHEDULE FOR ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS:  Motion to direct the City Attorney 
to develop an ordinance for a fine schedule for ordinance violations made by M. French; second by 
C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.    

    STAFF REPORTS 
 

16. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  Bolz reported there are no leak adjustments this month.  
 

17. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE DIRECTOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances and 
activity through August 31, 2024 were provided in the packet.   

 

ADDITIONAL BUSINESS ITEM 
 

18. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT FOR THE CEMETERY FUNDS:  Motion to approve the Finance 
Director to research and renew the certificates of deposit for better interest rates, terms and/or banks 
made by M. French; second by W. Illg. Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 16, 2024 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 5 of 5 
 

    MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS:   
 

Councilmember Sawyer reported that Amanda Edmondson and herself are participating in 
Leadership Dawson and wanted to express her gratitude to the City for allowing Amanda the  
opportunity to explore those leadership options.           

    EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

 At 6:40 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for real estate acquisition, 
pending/potential litigation and/or personnel  was made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. 

 

 At 6:52 p.m. a motion to close executive session was made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  
 

 Motion to resume regular session was made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.   

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 

At 6:54 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by S. Sawyer; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor. 

  
 

 Approved this 30th day of September 2024 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  
 
         
   Sandra Sawyer, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 





MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Thursday, September 19, 2024 

8:00 A.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Walden called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember William Illg, Councilmember Sandy Sawyer, 
Councilmember Mark French, Councilmember Caleb Phillips, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, Finance 
Director Robin Gazaway, Downtown Development Director Amanda Edmondson and Planning 
Director Ron Haynie.    

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE: Invocation and pledge were led by Councilmember Illg.   

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by M. French; 
second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

5. PUBLIC INPUT:  None    

6. CONDISERATION OF FINAL PLAT FOR THE VILLAGE AT MAPLE STREET:  Motion to approve 
the final plat for the Village at Maple Street as presented made by M. French; second by W. Illg.  
Councilmember Illg stated he did not support the development initially and still does not like the idea 
of it, however since the Council is passed the decision process, he wants to clarify they are only 
approving the final plat, not the development.  Vote carried three in favor (French, Illg, Sawyer) with 
one recused (Phillips).  (Exhibit “A”) 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT:  Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:04 a.m. made by S. Sawyer; second by C. 
Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

 
 

      
 Approved this 30th day of September 2024 

 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  
 
         
   Sandra Sawyer, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
 
 
Attest: _________________________        
           Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 



0
9
/0

6
/2

4
R
ev

is
io

n
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

ss
 C

it
y 

o
f 
D

a
w

so
n
vi

lle
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
ce

iv
e
d
 0

9
/0

4
/2

4

Exhibit "A"



09
/0
6/
24

Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/30/2024  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 
 

    
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8    
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    ZSP C2400135        

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/30/2024    
 
 

 
 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   DECISION 
 

CHRISTOPHER SIPOS HAS PETITIONED TO AMEND THE EXISTING SITE PLAN; LOCATED AT 
39 CREEKSTONE LANE (TMP 083 020).  PUBLIC HEARING DATES:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
ON MONDAY, JULY 8, 2024, AND CITY COUNCIL MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 .  CITY 
COUNCIL FOR A DECISION ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2024.  PLANNING COMMISSION 
TABLED THE DECISION UNTIL SEPTEMBER 9, 2024. 
 

 

HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• Planning Commission approved with conditions. 
• Planning Commission tabled until Monday, September 9, 2024. 
• 16 Flex – Office spaces will be constructed in four (4) phases, 1,250 square feet per office space. 
• The original application stated 60,000 square feet strip commercial building. 
• The architectural façade will consist of large, fixed glass windows, dry stacked stone columns, dry 

stacked stone up to three (3) feet of height on the buildings.  Hardie siding for the front and steel 
panels (leaf green color) on the sides.   

• Office, commercial and /or industrial uses are permitted in the PUD development. 

 
 
OPTIONS:  PUBLIC HEARING  
 
 

 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENT: Planning and Zoning           
 
 
REQUESTED BY: Ron Haynie, Planning Director_____      

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9    
 















































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   RESOLUTION NO. R2024-03 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/30/2024  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT 
 

    
RESOLUTION NO. R2024-03: RESOLUTION ENACTING A MORATORIUM FOR A PERIOD OF SIX MONTHS 
ON ALL RESIDENTIAL ZONING AND RE-ZONING APPLICATIONS WHILE THE CITY CONSIDERS 
CHANGES TO ITS ZONING ORDINANCE.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND FIRST READING: SEPTEMBER 16, 2024;  
SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT: SEPTEMBER 30, 2024. 
 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Kevin Tallant, City Attorney 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R2024-03 
 

RESOLUTION ENACTING A MORATORIUM FOR A PERIOD OF SIX MONTHS 
ON ALL RESIDENTIAL ZO NING AND RE-ZONINGS APPLICATIONS 

WHILE THE CITY CONSIDERS CHANGES TO ITS ZONING ORDINANCE 
 

WHEREAS, recent development trends in the City of Dawsonville (hereinafter referred 
to as “City”) suggest that current trends for residential district use may not be adequately addressed 
by the current City Zoning Ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City also provides certain services within the City, including but not 
limited to water and wastewater service, solid waste disposal, and through agreements with other 
entities public safety services, and the demand for such increases with additional development; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia (hereinafter referred to as 
"Council") is vested with substantial powers, rights and functions to generally regulate the practice, 
conduct or use of property for the purposes of maintaining health, morals, safety, security, peace, 
and the general welfare of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, Georgia law recognizes that local governments may impose moratoria on 
zoning decisions, building permits, and other development approvals where exigent circumstances 
warrant the same, pursuant to the case law found at Taylor v. Shetzen, 212 Ga. 101, 90 S.E.2d 
572 (1955); Lawson v. Macon, 214 Ga. 278, 104 S.E.2d 425 (1958); and most recently City of 
Roswell et al v. Outdoor Systems, Inc., 274 Ga. 130, 549 S.E.2d 90 (2001); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Georgia Supreme Court, in the case of DeKalb County v. Townsend, 
243 Ga. 80 (1979), held that, "To justify a moratorium, it must appear first, that the interests of 
the public generally, as distinguished from those of a particular class, require such interference; 
and second, that the means are reasonably necessary for the accomplishment of the purpose, 
and not unduly oppressive upon individuals." The Council has found that the interests of the 
public necessitate the enactment of a moratorium for health, safety, morals and general welfare 
purposes by means which are reasonable and not unduly oppressive; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council therefore considers it paramount that land use regulation 
continues in the most orderly and predictable fashion with the least amount of disturbance to 
landowners and to the citizens of the City. The Council has always had a strong interest in growth 
management so as to promote the traditional police power goals of health, safety, morals, 
aesthetics and the general welfare of the community; and in particular the lessening of 
congestion on City roads, security of the public from crime and other dangers, promotion 
of health and general welfare of its citizens, protection of the aesthetic qualities of the City 
including access to air and light, proper management and provision of water, waste water, 
solid waste, and similar services critical to public health, and facilitation of the adequate provision 
of transportation and other public requirements; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is the belief of the Council that the concept of "public welfare" is 
broad and inclusive; that the values it represents are spiritual as well as physical, aesthetic as 
well as monetary; and that it is within the power of the Council "to determine that a community 
should be beautiful as well as healthy, spacious as well as clean, well balanced as well as carefully 
patrolled," Berman v. Parker, 348 U.S. 26, 75 S.Ct. 98 (1954).  It is also the opinion of the Council 
that "general welfare" includes the valid public objectives of aesthetics, conservation of the value 
of existing lands and buildings within the City, making the most appropriate use of resources, 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

enhancing and protecting the economic well-being of the community, facilitating adequate 
provision of public services, and the preservation of the resources of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Council is, and has been interested in developing a cohesive and coherent 
policy regarding residential growth and zoning in the City, and hs intended to promote community 
development through stability, predictability and balanced growth which will further the 
prosperity of the City as a whole; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City is evaluating possible revisions to the City Zoning Ordinance and 
development regulations with respect to the regulation of residential development so as to address 
current development trends; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City to place a moratorium on 
the application and issuance of residential initial zonings and re-zonings until the review is 
completed. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA, in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful authority 
thereof, as follows: 
 

1. In order to adequately study said issues and any zoning ordinance amendments 
determined to be required, the Council finds as follows: the zoning ordinance and 
comprehensive land use plan require review as they relate to residential zones; 
substantial detriment and irreparable harm may result if revision of residential zoning 
ordinances is needed and not implemented; said review of the ordinance and plan 
requires that a cessation of limited duration of zoning and rezoning applications be 
implemented with regard to all residential developments; and it is necessary and in the 
public's interest to delay, for a reasonable and finite period of time, the acceptance 
or processing of any applications for such developments to ensure that the design, 
development, and location are consistent with the long-term planning objectives of the 
City. 

 
2. There is hereby imposed a moratorium on the acceptance by the City of all zoning or 

rezoning applications for the development of residential developments as provided for 
under the zoning ordinance of the City.  

 
3. The duration of this moratorium shall be until the City lifts the moratorium by vote of 

the City Council, or until March 1, 2025, whichever first occurs. 
 

4. This moratorium shall have no effect upon rezonings occurring before the effective date 
of this Resolution.  This moratorium is not a moratorium on development of properties 
already zoned in the City prior to the enactment of this Resolution. 

 
5. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Council that all sections, paragraphs, 

sentences, clauses and phrases of this Resolution are and were, upon their enactment, 
believed by the Council to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. It is hereby 
declared to be the intention of the Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, 
each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Resolution is 
severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase therein. It is 
hereby further declared to be the intention of the Council, to the greatest extent allowed 
by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Resolution is mutually 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Resolution. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 
Resolution shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 
otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Council that such invalidity, 
unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 
render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining 
phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Resolution and that, to the 
greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs 
and sections of the Resolution shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of 
full force and effect. 

 
6. All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent 

of such conflict, hereby repealed. 
 

7. The preamble of this Resolution shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated by 
reference as if fully set out herein. 

 
SO ADOPTED AND RESOLVED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day 
of _______________________, 2024. 
 

MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY  
 COUNCIL 
 
 

By:       
       John Walden, Mayor 
 

 
      
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
            
            
       William Illg, Council Member Post 2 
 
            
            
       Sandy Sawyer, Council Member Post 3 
 
 
            
       Mark French, Council Member Post 4 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    CONSIDERATION OF TRANSFERRING GRANDADDY MIMMS 2023 ALCOHOL 

LICENSE FEES TO THEIR 2024 FEES 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/30/2024  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO CONSIDER REQUEST FROM GRANDADDY MIMMS TO TRANSFER THEIR 2023 ALCOHOL 
LICENSE FEES TO THEIR 2024 ALCOHOL LICENSE FEES 

 
   AMOUNT PAID IS $2,100.00 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 GRANDADDY MIMMS WAS NOT OPEN FOR BUSINESS AT ALL IN 2023; INSIDE WORK WAS NOT 
COMPLETED 
 
 
 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11     
 

 

 







                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:    RATIFICATION OF DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY FOR HURRICANE 

HELENE 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/30/2024  
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO RATIFY MAYOR WALDEN’S DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY FOR HURRICANE HELENE 
 

   TO DETERMINE IF STAFF SHOULD BE PAID FOR TIME NOT WORKED WHEN THE CITY 
CLOSES DURING A DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

• STATE OF EMERGENCY DECLARED BY GOVERNOR KEMP FOR THE ENTIRE STATE 
OF GA 

• HURRICANE HELENE PREDICTED TO BRING HEAVY RAIN, STRONG WINDS AND 
POTENTIAL FLOODING TO DAWSONVILLE 

• POWERS OF THE MAYOR TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY CAN BE FOUND UNDER 
CHAPTER 9, SECTION 9-1 

 
 
 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 


	1. 09.30.2024 AGENDA City Council Special Called Meeting
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2. 09.16.2024 MINUTES City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session.DRAFT
	7a. 3. 09.19.2024 MINUTES City Council Special Called Meeting.DRAFT
	8. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	9. 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ZA C2400125
	9. 2. 20240911125628273
	10. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items RESOLUTION
	10. 2. Resolution R2024-03_ Zoning Moratorium DRAFT (002)
	11. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items GRANDADDY MIMMS
	11. 2. 2023 Granddaddy Mimms PZ Inv_Redacted
	12. 1. Executive Summary For Agenda Items RATIFY DEC OF EMERGENCY



